Minutes of Meeting

Board of Funeral, Cemetery and Consumer Services

February 7, 2007 - 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.

Hilton St Petersburg Bayfront

333 1st Street South

St Petersburg, FL 33701

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

Mr. Greg Brudnicki, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:00 am.  Ms. Diana Evans, Executive Director, called the roll:

  

PRESENT:


         



  
Greg Brudnicki, Chairman
   
Jody Brandenburg, Vice-Chairman      



 
Pete Ballas

  
Powell Helm
Nancy Hubbell  


Tracy Huggins        





  
Ken Jones






  
Gail Thomas-DeWitt

Catherine Zippay


         



ALSO PRESENT:

        
Diana Evans, Executive Director


Deborah Loucks, Board Counsel

Elizabeth Teegen, Chief Counsel


Mechele McBride, Department Counsel


James Gellepis, Department Staff


LaTonya Bryant, Department Staff

Tampa Field Staff (Thurman Lowe, Kurt Schuller, Thomas Limber, Chris McMurray)

ABSENT:


Justin Baxley  

Ms. Evans declared a quorum.  
II.        Action on the Minutes
A. December 7, 2006 

Mr. Chairman confirmed that all Board members had read the draft of the minutes of the previous Board meeting held on December 7th.

MOTION:  Mr. Ken Jones moved to adopt the minutes of the meeting.  Col. Pete Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. January 4, 2007 - Teleconference

Mr. Chairman confirmed that all Board members had read the draft of the minutes of the previous teleconference meeting held on January 4th.

MOTION:  Mr. Powell Helm moved to adopt the minutes of the meeting.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

III.
Old Business

A.
Request to Rescind Denial of Application and Grant Approval 


1.  
Application for Direct Disposal Establishment



American Cremations, Inc (Pompano Beach)   DFS Case No. 88233-06-FC

Ms. Mechele McBride stated that on August 24, 2006 the Board denied the application for licensure as a direct disposal establishment.  The denial was based on the determination that the applicant did not meet the requirement of having 625 interior, contiguous square feet.  The Department issued a denial letter and the company obtained a copy and disputed the findings.  The Department alleged that when the investigation was conducted, the main office was 100 square feet.  The company alleged that they did have 625 square feet as in addition to the main office; they also have the adjoining hallways, 2 conference rooms and reception area, all of which total more than 625 square feet.  Also upon litigation, the Department investigated the term “contiguous”, which is not as clear cut as one would think.  One definition states that the spaces need to be adjoining and another definition states that the spaces need to be in close proximity.  In light of the fact that there were arguments on both sides, the Department and the company decided to settle with them being granted their license.  The Department recommends that the Board approve the Consent Order and issue licensure to American Cremations, Inc.
MOTION:  Col Ballas moved to approve the order.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION:  Mr. Jody Brandenburg questioned whether the Department had reviewed the lease to confirm whether the other square footage was included.  The building manager was willing to make these representations at the hearing.

Ms. McBride responded that the lease was reviewed and it states that the conference rooms may be utilized as well as the reception area.  

Mr. Helm questioned whether the facility was being shared.

Ms. McBride responded that the facility was being shared with someone else.  However, the rules or laws do not state that they are prohibited from sharing space with other entities.  The law states they must have 625 interior contiguous square feet.  

Mr. Helm questioned would this fall into the category of 2 funeral establishments in the same building.
Ms. McBride stated that the applicant would testify that there are no other funeral establishments in that building.


2. 
Application for Florida Laws and Rules Examination – Funeral Director and Embalmer



Anderson, Adrienne Dishonne 



DFS Case No. 88293-06-FC



Ms McBride stated that on October 26, 2006, the Board denied the applicant’s request for licensure as a funeral director and embalmer.  The basis for the denial was the applicant’s prior criminal history, which would affect her ability to practice in the profession.  Ms. Anderson denied those allegations and requested a hearing.  The Department began to go forward with litigation.  At that time, Ms. Anderson advised the Department and the Hearing Officer that she would provide testimony of her employer and other character witnesses to attest that her criminal history has no bearing or effect on her ability to practice in the profession, as the prior Board approved her for a funeral internship.  The Department consulted with an expert consultant in the industry to determine whether the Department would be able to rebut or refute that evidence.  The expert reviewed that case and stated that with the testimony that Ms. Evans would provide, there would be no basis to rebut or refute the evidence as she would have someone testifying that her criminal history is not affecting her ability to practice and that she is doing a good job.  In light of not having anyone to testify and rebut that allegation and having a witness that would actually attest to the fact that her criminal history does not effect her ability to practice in the profession, the Department recommends that this case be settled with Ms. Anderson being granted her license.  However, Ms. Anderson would be on probation for 2 years.  During that time, Ms. Anderson would be required to provide a quarterly report showing any complaints filed against her, any letters or good service and also report the number of bodies handled.  Additionally, after the 2 year period, Ms. Anderson would be required to appear before the Board with testimony or letters of reference showing and demonstrating that she is professional and is doing what is required by the laws and rules governing her license.  The Department recommends that the Board grant approval of Ms. Anderson’s license and settle this case.
Ms. Anderson stated that her employer, Mr. McWhite, was not able to leave in time and make it here for the meeting.  However, Mr. McWhite is available via telephone if possible.  Ms. Anderson presented the Board members with letters pertaining to her character from others in the industry as well as an Ex- Detention Deputy.  Also included were 2 pieces of correspondence from the Office of Executive Clemency in the quest to restore her Civil Rights.  
Ms. Tracy Huggins questioned whether the Board is able to get past Section 497.152, F.S.

Ms. McBride stated that was the basis for the denial.  In lieu of litigation, the Department recommends that this case be settled as there were no witnesses to support that contention.

Mr. Helm stated that there was no one present the last time this issue was presented to the Board.

Ms. Anderson stated that she assumed since the internship had been granted by the Board, in absence of any other criminal history and there was no criminal activity, there would not be a problem.  
MOTION:  Ms. Nancy Hubbell moved to approve the order.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

IV.
Disciplinary Proceedings

A.
Brown, Donald


DFS Case No. 83464-05-FC

Ms McBride stated that this case was initiated by complaint by the deceased’s daughter indicating that Mr. Brown had forged an Assignment Form assigning him as the beneficiary of a life insurance policy.  Through the investigation, it was determined that Mr. Brown did not forge the signature of the deceased, but that the daughter’s sibling signed the form so that he could collect the proceeds.  The daughter then filed a claim with the insurance company.  Mr. Brown never received the money.  The Department recommends that this case be settled.  The former attorney handling this case also recommended that this case be settled with the payment of a fine
MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the order.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B.
McAninch, Ellis L. 


DFS Case No. 83385-05-FC

Ms McBride stated that this case was initiated by a complaint by the deceased’s husband, who alleged that Mr. McAninch disinterred and reinterred his wife from one cemetery to another without his authorization or knowledge.  The investigation determined that the deceased’s parents had requested that she be disinterred and reinterred from one cemetery to another.  The funeral director also stated that their was no information in the file nor did the family indicate that the deceased was married, as she was 17 years old at the time of death.  The deceased had gone to Georgia to marry this individual.  The family did not provide this information to the funeral director, so he obtained the authorization from the parents.  The husband then found out and filed a complaint.  The Department decided to settle this case as the information regarding the disinterment and the reinterment, which was approved by the municipality, could not be located.  The municipality only keeps the information for a limited number of years.  The Department recommends that this case be settled with Mr. McAninch paying a $2500 fine.
MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the order.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
C.
Tullis, Alex


DFS Case No. 83345-05-FC

Ms McBride stated that this case was initiated by a complaint from a family member of the deceased alleging that the funeral service was unprofessional.  At the time that the Department investigated this complaint, in reviewing the documents, it was determined that Mr. Tullis had signed the funeral service contract and allowed an unlicensed person to make the funeral arrangements.  Mr. Tullis refuted the allegation and requested a hearing.  Mr. Tullis did show up at the funeral services.  However, the problem was whether he provided the contract to the individual.  Mr. Tullis alleges that he was there, but the family states that he was not.  Two separate sets of family members came in on 2 separate days.  In lieu of litigation, the Department recommends settlement of this case with a $2500 fine.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned there is any reprimand on this case as it appears to be egregious. 
Ms. McBride questioned whether the Board would like the Consent Order revised to add reprimand.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether there was an investigation into the unlicensed activity.

Ms. McBride stated that the records were reviewed and a determination was made that the person who actually arranged the funeral services, according to the family, was not licensed at the time, but the contract was signed by Mr. Tullis.  Mr. Tullis indicates that the family came in on 2 occasions and that the family member who is complaining did not come in along with the deceased’s children.

Mr. Jones questioned whether other contracts were reviewed to determine whether the unlicensed individual had signed any other contracts.
Ms. McBride answered no.  This case was investigated by the Department of Business and Professional Regulation and it does not appear that they reviewed any other documents.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether Mr. Tullis was the Funeral Director in Charge.

Ms. McBride responded no.  Mr. Tullis was one of the funeral directors who assisted the funeral home on the weekend.  

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the Funeral Director in Charge would be liable in some way.

Ms. McBride responded that there is a possibility that it would be the responsibility of the Funeral Director in Charge in addition to the funeral director that was over the funeral services.  Ms. McBride stated that if the Board would like, she would go back and review the file to try and determine who the Funeral Director in Charge was and whether they would have any liability so that the reprimand could be issued.
Mr. Helm questioned whether any action could be taken against Sheikh Rafayi Alkhalifa as he is not a funeral director. 

Ms. McBride stated that Sheikh Alkhalifa has a history of violations with the Board.  There were criminal charges pressed against the owner of the funeral home.  He was ordered to pay back a large sum of money, provide restitution and be on probation.  Also, he was to be on probation with the Board.  There were charges against him.  It is not clear if the charges surrounding this particular complaint were charges from the criminal action, in which he was ordered to provide thousands of dollars in restitution and supervised probation.
Mr. Helm questioned whether there were any charges against Sheikh Alkhalifa.

Ms. McBride stated that there were prior actions taken against Sheikh Alkhalifa but not by the prior Board or this Board in relation to this case.

Mr. Jones asked for clarification of Shiekh Alkhalifa’s prior history.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Sheikh Alkhalifa is still working at the establishment.
Ms. McBride stated that it is believed that Sheikh Alkhalifa still owns the establishment as well as a number of other funeral establishments.  When DBPR investigated this case, they did not decide to pursue any investigation against the owner.

Mr. Jones questioned whether Sheikh Alkhalifa has been cited for this before.

Ms. McBride advised that she was unsure of this.  The criminal history alleges that he was misappropriating funds received from funeral services, which was the basis of the criminal charges in which he is to provide restitution.  He was also charged with an organized scheme to defraud.

Mr. Chairman questioned how long ago this occurred.

Ms. McBride responded that the charges were in 2003.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether this case came after that.

Ms. McBride responded that it occurred around the same time.  It was investigated by DBPR.

Mr. Chairman stated that there needs to be some type reprimand.

Ms. Deborah Loucks stated if the Board would like to add some type reprimand to this particular Consent Order, the Board would have to reject the Consent Agreement being presented and advise the Department what you would like to see as a reprimand and they would need to take it back to the licensee and see if they would enter into another Consent Agreement.  

Mr. Chairman stated that there needs to be some type of probation.

Mr. Helm stated that there needs to be an action against the owner.

Ms. McBride stated that there was a dispute as to whether Mr. Tullis actually sat with the family members that did not complain.  The complainant came in the following day and spoke with the owner.  The date on the form used by the owner had the date that Mr. Tullis was in the office.  The other date was when another funeral director was in the office.  The funeral director in charge’s name is no where on the form.

Mr. Chairman questioned the fines or penalties the owner received.

Ms. McBride responded that the owner was ordered to pay restitution.

MOTION:  Ms. Gail Thomas-DeWitt moved to reject the order.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion.
Mr. Brandenburg proposed a $5000 fine, a reprimand and 2 years probation against the funeral director.

Ms. McBride stated that Mr. Tullis no longer works with the funeral home as a result of the problems that occurred.
Mr. Chairman questioned who is paying the $5000 fine.

Ms. McBride responded that the funeral director who met with the family one day but not the next day.  He has since left as a result of the problems.  Mr. Tullis alleges that he was not aware that his contract was being used the next day.  He initially met with the family on Thursday and made arrangements.  However, a cousin of the family was not pleased with the arrangements and came in the following day and met with the owner and made further arrangements.  However, the owner used the contract that Mr. Tullis had signed on Thursday.  The funeral director in charge that Friday was not Mr. Tullis.
Mr. Chairman stated that it appears that the wrong person is being penalized.

Mr. Brandenburg agreed.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to reconsider the previous order.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to accept the order.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Ms. McBride stated that the Department could issue a Cease and Desist Order for unlicensed activity.  If this continues, then the Department has the option of fining a significant amount and taking the case to Circuit Court to enforce the Cease and Desist.  The problem is that the owner is not licensed.  However, he does own a number of funeral establishments.
Mr. Chairman questioned whether the funeral establishment could be placed on probation for 2 years and then have the owner come before the Board, although he is not licensed.

Ms. McBride stated that she would look into this.
Mr. Jones also asked that Ms. McBride look into Sheikh Alkhalifa’s history to determine whether there have been other complaints against him.

Ms. McBride stated that she would.

V.
Application for Cinerator Facility

A.   Hernando Crematory Inc (Spring Hill)
Ms. Evans stated that the application was submitted on December 20, 2006.  The application was complete when submitted and did not require a deficiency letter.  The facility was inspected on January 17, 2007 and the findings listed below were reported.  The establishment is recommended for approval contingent upon providing proof of completion of deficient items.  Fingerprint cards for all principals were returned with no criminal history.

Findings that rendered a “No” on the inspection:

1.  Name of Cinerator facility/Funeral Director of Direct Disposer in charge posted at public entrance

2.  Appropriate DEP permit

3.  Operational procedures filed with and approved by the Department.

4.  Facility maintains a complaint log.

5.  Facility maintains written procedures for handling complaints.

The items that were listed for “No” on the inspection would not be a violation until they open the doors.  The DEP permit will not be issued until they can turn on the retort and test it by their standard.

Ms. Evans added that before the license is issued, the Department would re-inspect the facility to ensure all the issues have been resolved.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the application.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B.
Peavy Funeral Home d/b/a Omega Crematory (Blountstown)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 27, 2006.  The application was complete and a deficiency letter was not necessary.  The fingerprint card for the principal was returned with no criminal history.  The establishment passed its inspection on January 19, 2007.

MOTION:  Ms. Zippay moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VI.
Applications for Funeral Establishment

A. 
Recommended for Approval


1.
Downing Funeral Home and Cremation Service Inc (Spring Hill)       
Ms. Evans stated that the application was submitted on December 20, 2006.  The application was complete when submitted and did not require a deficiency letter.  The facility was inspected on January 17, 2007 and the findings listed below were reported.  The establishment is recommended for approval contingent upon providing proof of completion of deficient items.  Fingerprint cards for all principals were returned with no criminal history.

Findings that rendered a “No” on the inspection:


1.  Adult caskets displayed in same general manner.


2.  Casket prices conspicuously displayed on/in casket.


3.  Establishment/FDIC name displayed at public entrance.

4.  Establishment maintains a complaint log.

5.  Establishment maintains written procedures for handling complaints.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the application.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VII.
Application(s) to Acquire Control of an Existing Cemetery Company



A.  
Kent Care of Florida, LLC to acquire Tallahassee Memory Gardens (Tallahassee) 

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 29, 2006 from Kent Care of Florida, LLC for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Tallahassee Memory Gardens. The Department issued a notice of deficiencies on January 9, 2007. A response to the notice was received on January 12, 2007. In response to the Department’s inquiry regarding the principal’s percentage of ownership of approximately 60%, the response stats that the four principals identified in the application are the only persons owning 10% or greater interest, and are the only persons with the ability to control the applicant.

All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The applicant’s President answered “yes” to question #4 on the Historical Sketch: “Have you or any company of which you are or were then an officer or member ever been declared bankrupt?”

He reports a personal Chapter 7 bankruptcy filed March 2003 in the state of Missouri, with all debts being discharged by the court on July 10, 2003.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

***ITEMS B – F WERE DISCUSSED TOGETHER***

Mr. Brandenburg disclosed his affiliation with SCI Funeral Services of Florida, Inc.

B. NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC to acquire Beth David Memorial Gardens (Hollywood)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 22, 2006 from NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC (formerly known as Keatley Investments, LLC) for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Beth David Memorial Gardens. The applicant is purchasing the cemetery pursuant to an agreement based upon the merger by and among SCI Corporation International, Coronado Acquisition Corporation and Alderwoods Group, Inc., effective November 28, 2006. All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

C. NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC to acquire Fort Myers Memorial Gardens (Fort Myers)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 22, 2006 from NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC (formerly known as Keatley Investments, LLC) for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Fort Myers Memorial Gardens. The applicant is purchasing the cemetery pursuant to an agreement based upon the merger by and among SCI Corporation International, Coronado Acquisition Corporation and Alderwoods Group, Inc., effective November 28, 2006. All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

D. NorthStar Graceland, LLC to acquire Graceland Memorial Park North (Miami)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 22, 2006 from NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC (formerly known as Keatley Investments, LLC) for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Graceland Memorial Park North. The applicant is purchasing the cemetery pursuant to an agreement based upon the merger by and among SCI Corporation International, Coronado Acquisition Corporation and Alderwoods Group, Inc., effective November 28, 2006. All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

             
E.  
NorthStar Graceland, LLC to acquire Graceland Memorial Park South (Miami)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 22, 2006 from NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC (formerly known as Keatley Investments, LLC) for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Graceland Memorial Park South. The applicant is purchasing the cemetery pursuant to an agreement based upon the merger by and among SCI Corporation International, Coronado Acquisition Corporation and Alderwoods Group, Inc., effective November 28, 2006. All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

F.
NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC to acquire Skyway Memorial Gardens (Palmetto)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 22, 2006 from NorthStar Cemetery Services of Florida, LLC (formerly known as Keatley Investments, LLC) for authority to acquire control via asset purchase of Skyway Memorial Gardens. The applicant is purchasing the cemetery pursuant to an agreement based upon the merger by and among SCI Corporation International, Coronado Acquisition Corporation and Alderwoods Group, Inc., effective November 28, 2006. All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The department noted no deficiencies with the application.

 As of January 25, 2007 approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Department receipt of documents verifying the closing of the sale. 

2. Existing cemetery licenses returned for cancellation.

The applicant has waived the final examination of trust funds by the Department.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the owners understand that if there was anything bonded, the bonds must be kept in place for the unfunded liability. 

Ms. Evans stated that the bonds could not be kept in place.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether all the liability associated with the bonds is being put into trust.

Mr. Tim Birch stated that as part of the Asset Purchase Agreement, the seller has agreed to replace all bonded amounts with cash in the respected trust funds.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether NorthStar is satisfied with the liability that they are covering.

Mr. Birch responded yes.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

VIII.
Applications for Preneed Sales Agent


A. Recommended for Approval  - See Addendum A

Ms. Evans presented the applicants for approval. 

Ms. Huggins disclosed her affiliation with The Simplicity Plan.
MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the applications.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Consideration


1.  
Gilmore, Howell Dubose (Sponsoring PNL:  SCI Funeral Services of FL)

Ms. Evans stated that on the application received by the Department on November 28, 2006 the applicant answered “No” to Applicant Background Questions # 2 and #3:  “Has the PSA applicant ever been convicted or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, (a) regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, and (b) regardless of whether the criminal conduct occurred inside or outside the state of Florida, and (c) regardless of whether the criminal prosecution occurred in a Florida state court or the courts of another state, the United States, or foreign country, of or to any of the following crimes: (2) Any other felony which was committed within the 20 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application; or (3) Any other crime, whether a misdemeanor or felony, committed within the 5 years immediately preceding the date of this on-line application?”

As a result, the applicant was issued a temporary preneed sales agent license.  However, a background check conducted by the Department revealed criminal history.  The applicant was advised to cease and desist all preneed sales and has submitted documentation to disclose the following:

Case #:
  
05-01-MJ10-05, District Court, Valdosta County, GA.


  
May 22, 2002

Offense:  
Damage to property of the United States, Misdemeanor

Pled:

Guilty

Sentence:
90 days confinement, 12 months Probation, $419.40 restitution

Disposition:
Served confinement, completed probation June 5, 2003, paid restitution.

Mr. Tim Claiborne attempted to clarify the applicant’s reasoning for answering “no” to the criminal history question.  SCI Funeral Services of FL has a procedure where the applicant fills out the form on a manual basis and faxes it to a designated individual of the company.  That person in turn enters the data into the computer.  There was an error, as the boxes were not checked yes or no by the applicant.  The administrator accidentally said “no” to the criminal history question and caused the temporary license to be granted.  
Ms. Evans questioned whether Mr. Gilmore disclosed this on his worksheet.

Mr. Claiborne stated that it was not answered on the worksheet.

Ms. Evans questioned whether Mr. Gilmore provided any information regarding this.

Mr. Claiborne stated that he had no knowledge of this.

Ms. Evans questioned whether SCI was informed of this.

Mr. Claiborne stated that SCI conducts background checks of employees.  However, misdemeanors do not show up.

Mr. Helm questioned whether Mr. Gilmore served 90 days for a misdemeanor.

Mr. Gilmore responded yes as he hit the gate of a US Air Force guard shack.  Mr. Gilmore stated that he fell asleep at the wheel on his way home from working nights.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned the bad checks incident.

Mr. Gilmore stated that he has not written any bad checks since that time.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed with 2 dissenting votes.


2.
McDonald, Chris (Sponsoring PNL: Keatley Investments, LLC)

Ms. Evans stated that the application was withdrawn upon request of the appointing entity due to the applicant no longer seeking licensure.
IX. 
Application(s) for Preneed License 

A. Downing Funeral Home & Cremation Services, Inc. (Springhill)

Ms. Evans stated the Department received the application on December 26, 2006.  A deficiency letter was sent out to the applicant on January 9, 2007.  The applicant resolved all deficiencies on January 25, 2007. 

The Applicant’s financial statements as of December 31, 2006 reflect the following:

               Preneed Contracts 
= $               0           



Required Net Worth 
= $      10,000


Reported Net Worth
= $ 2,752,090

The Applicant will use both the pre-approved National Guardian Life (NGL) Insurance pre-funded funeral agreement and the Independent Funeral Directors of Florida (IFDF) Master Trust Fund (I-Trust) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

Staff recommends approval of this application contingent upon approval of the qualifying establishment license.

Ms. Evans added that the financials are not in accordance with GAAP.  It is confusing as to who actually owns the land.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether the land and building are personally owned by the applicant or by the business.

Mr. Mark Downing responded that it is set up under him.

Ms. Evans questioned whether it is in the name of Mark Downing Funeral Home and Cremation Services, Inc.

Mr. Downing responded that the land is set up under Land Trust.  The original land was purchased prior to development.

Ms. Evans questioned whether the land is in the name of Mr. and Mrs. Downing.

Mr. Downing responded yes.

Ms. Evans stated that the land is in the name of the corporation

Mr. Downing stated he did not believe so but would have to review the corporate papers to be sure.

Ms. Evans questioned whether financial statements were resubmitted as Staff requested.

Mr. Downing stated that he thought the financials had been resubmitted, but if not he would do so.

Ms. Evans questioned whether Mr. Jim Gellepis was in receipt of the financials.

Mr. Gellepis responded that he was not in possession of the new financials.  However, they may have been submitted after the information was forwarded to the Board.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether there is any debt on the building or land.

Mr. Downing stated that he owes on all of it.

Mr. Chairman stated that the liability is not listed on the financial statement.  The assets are shown, but the liabilities associated with them are not.  Long term liabilities reads look under current liabilities.  It shows that $7700 accounts payable is owed for the funeral home but there are no long term liabilities.  There is no way these financials could be correct.

Ms. Evans questioned the $250,000 worth of inventory.

Mr. Downing responded that the inventory consisted of the retort, refrigeration, tables.  The applicant advises that he was told to combine everything owned, including the flower shop.
Ms. Evans stated that it appears that $240,000 or $280,000 is listed as office furniture and equipment and $66,000 listed as automobiles.  Ms. Evans questioned whether any of those things are in the name of the corporation.

Mr. Downing stated it appears the items are listed twice.

Mr. Chairman advised that the applicant sit down with his accountant.

Mr. Chairman added that this item should be deferred until a revised financial statement has been received.

Ms. Evans questioned whether the applicant would waive his 90-day right.

Mr. Downing questioned whether the Board would approve the application contingent upon receipt of the financial statements.
Mr. Chairman stated that the Board could not consider approving the application until the financials have been received.

Mr. Downing stated that he would waive his 90-day right.

Ms. Evans requested that Mr. downing submit his waiver in writing.

Mr. Downing affirmed that he would.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to defer the application.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Kent Care of Florida, LLC (Marianna)

Ms. Evans stated the Department received the application on December 27, 2006. The Applicant is purchasing Abbey-Riposta Funeral Home.  The qualifying funeral establishment license was approved at the January 9, 2007 Board teleconference pending closing of the sale. The applicant is also purchasing Tallahassee Memory Gardens cemetery, which application to transfer control appears on this agenda.

The Department issued a notice of deficiencies on January 9, 2007. A response to the notice was received on January 12, 2007. In response to the Department’s inquiry regarding the principal’s percentage of ownership of approximately 60%, the response states that the four principals identified in the application are the only persons owning 10% or greater interest, and are the only persons with the ability to control the applicant.

All principals’ fingerprint and criminal history reports were received and reflected clean results. The applicant’s President answered “yes” to question #4 on the Historical Sketch: “Have you or any company of which you are or were then an officer or member ever been declared bankrupt?” He reports a personal Chapter 7 bankruptcy filed March 2003 in the state of Missouri, with all debts being discharged by the court on July 10, 2003.

The balance sheet as of December 22, 2006 reflects the following:

                 Preneed Contracts 
= $ 1,500,000               



Required Net Worth 
= $    100,000


Reported Net Worth
= $    300,000

The balance sheet reflects the $300,000 as capital contributions consisting of $150,000 cash and a $150,000 note receivable from the seller, which stems from an unrelated transaction. The Applicant has a preneed branch application on this agenda pending approval of this preneed license.

The Applicant will use the pre-approved Funeral Services, Inc. (FSI) 1993 Trust Agreement (SouthTrust Asset Management Co.) and pre-arranged funeral agreement.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

X.
Application(s) for Preneed License Branch 

A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum B
Ms. Evans presented the application(s).
Ms. Huggins disclosed her affiliation with The Simplicity Plan.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application(s).  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XI.
Application(s) to Become a Training Facility

A.
Richard L Macon Funeral Home, Inc. d/b/a Freeman Funeral Home (Pompano Beach)
 

Ms. Evans stated that the applicant reports 90 embalmings and 96 cases for funeral directing.
 MOTION:  Ms. Thomas-Dewitt moved to approve the application.  Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XII.
Application(s) for Florida Laws and Rules Examination 


A.
Recommended for Approval - Addendum C



1.
Funeral Director and Embalmer - Internship


a.    Campbell, Jarrod T

      
b.    Owen, Marvin H




2.
Funeral Director and Embalmer- Endorsement



a.    Frontczak, Michael W

 
         
b.    Moran, James E



c.
Presson, Chari


         
c.    Washington, Renada


Ms. Evans presented the applicant(s) for the Florida Laws and Rules Exam.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the applications.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Recommended for Consideration



1.   Funeral Director and Embalmer


a.  
Croy, Jeffrey A
Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 19, 2006.  The application was complete and a deficiency letter was not sent. The fingerprint card report was returned on January 5, 2007 with no criminal history.  The applicant answered “Yes” to Section 10, Adverse Licensing History Questions (a)- Have you ever had any license to practice embalming, funeral directing, direct disposing , or any other regulated profession, revoked, suspended, fined, reprimanded, or otherwise disciplined, by any regulatory authority in Florida or any other state or jurisdiction?  

In October of 1995, while holding an EMT-IV license, the applicant was on a paid job and performed a procedure that should have been performed by a paramedic or paramedic student with a preceptor.  The applicant was placed on probation for two years and was given $100 civil fine, to be waived on successful completion of probation.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the application.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.



b.  
Webster, Norman E


Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on October 17, 2006.  The application was not complete and a deficiency letter was sent.  The deficient items were completed on December 19, 2006.  The applicant answered “Yes” to Section 11, in Criminal History Questions.-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below.”  

Date:            1997

Location:     Kentucky 

Case #:         98-105        

Offense:       Mail Fraud

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:      4 months home detention: 2 years probation (reduced to 1 year); $20,000 restitution; $100 assessment fine 



Disposition:  Guilty

The applicant also answered “Yes” to Section 10, Adverse Licensing History Questions (a)- Have you ever had any license to practice embalming, funeral directing, direct disposing , or any other regulated profession, revoked, suspended, fined, reprimanded, or otherwise disciplined, by any regulatory authority in Florida or any other state or jurisdiction?  

In April of 2001 the applicant’s Kentucky Funeral Director and Embalmer license was revoked because of failure to pay a fine of $5000.  

In July of 2001, the Indiana Professional Licensing Agency placed the applicant’s Funeral Director license under probation for a year for failure to inform the Board that he had a felony conviction.
Mr. Norman Webster stated that he was unaware that he was to notify the Board of his felony conviction.  It was just a failure to reply.  Mr. Webster was called before the Board and given the option of paying a $5000 fine or revocation of licensure and Mr. Webster opted not to pay the $5000 fine.

Mr. Chairman questioned the mail fraud incident.

Mr. Webster presented the Board with a summary and some letters of reference.  

Mr. Helm questioned whether Mr. Webster is applying for licensure for the future or whether he has relocated to Florida.

Mr. Webster stated that he was applying for the future.  Mrs. Webster is planning to retire from Federal Government and Mr. Webster hopes to move to Florida by May 1st.

Mr. Helm questioned whether Mr. Webster has employment set up.

Mr. Webster stated that he has had 4 successful interviews and have informed each of the perspective employers of the felony history.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned the original state of licensure.

Mr. Webster responded Kentucky.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether that license was revoked.

Mr. Webster responded yes.

Mr. Webster stated when he plead guilty to the charge of mail fraud, he was not involved or employed in the funeral industry at that time but maintained CEUs and occasionally performed an embalming operation.  Mr. Webster was employed as the Director of the Lexington Fayette County Forensic Center where the Medical Examiner’s office was.  Mr. Webster resigned his position upon pleading guilty.  At time, Mr. Webster made applications with 3 different funeral homes, to get back into the funeral industry, and accepted employment with a funeral home in Indiana.  Then, Mr. Webster made an application with the Board in Indiana to file for reciprocity, which was accepted and approved.  Someone anonymously notified the Kentucky Board of the felony conviction.  Mr. Webster had to appear before the Board and was given the option to pay $5000 and maintaining licensure or forfeiture of licensure.  As he was employed and licensed in Indiana, Mr. Webster refused to pay the fine and his license was revoked.  In turn, someone anonymously notified the Indiana Board of the felony conviction, so Mr. Webster had to appear for that Board.  There was no question of criminal history on the application for reciprocity in Indiana.  The Board offered the option of 6 months suspension with 1 year probation, of which Mr. Webster accepted and his license became active again.  

Before 1997, Mr. Webster professional and community status was exemplary.  Mr. Webster made a mistake, but has admitted to it and paid the consequences.  Since 1997, Mr. Webster has lived and exemplary life professionally and civically.
Mr. Webster requested the Board’s consideration for licensure so that he may move to Florida.  If the Board does not approve the application, Mr. Webster will remain in Indiana as a licensed funeral director and embalmer.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned Mr. Webster’s education in the funeral industry, particularly whether the applicant has an Associate of Science Degree in Mortuary Science.

Mr. Webster responded no, but he did pass the National Board.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that one of the requirements in Florida is an Associates of Science Degree in Mortuary Science.

Mr. Webster advises that he was informed that under the Grandfather Law, as long as he passed the National Board and prove verification of that, he could be licensed in Florida.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt stated that Mr. Webster was misinformed.

Mr. Webster stated that he was under the impression and led to believe that as long as he passed the National Board, he could ask for licensure through endorsement.

Ms. Loucks stated that the Board does have grounds for denial.  The strongest ground for denial would be the fact that the applicant had 2 licenses in 2 other jurisdictions acted against.  One would be the revocation and the other would be the suspension and probation.  The Board could also grant licensure with restrictions or the applicant could withdraw his application to avoid a denial on his record.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether an applicant could be grandfathered in as long as the National Board is passed or is the degree required.

Mr. Chairman stated that this item would be revisited later in the meeting.

XIII.
Application(s) for Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern 


A.
Recommended for Approval – See Addendum D

 
1.   
Lambert, Jerilynn A


2.   
McCluskey, Jacqueline M



3.   
Urban, Jennifer J
Ms. Evans presented the application(s) for Funeral Director and Embalmer Intern.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the applications.  Mr. Helm seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XIV.
Application(s) for Embalmer Intern


A.
Recommended for Approval – See Addendum E


1. 
Luer, Ashley A

Ms. Evans presented the application(s) for Embalmer Intern.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XV.
Application(s) for Embalmer Apprentice 


A.
Recommended for Consideration


1.    King, Rickie V

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on September 22, 2006.  The application was incomplete and a deficiency letter was submitted.  The deficient items were completed on November 13, 2006.  The applicant answered “Yes” to Section 7, in Criminal History Questions.-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below.”  

Date:            9/25/1993

Location:     Jacksonville 

Case #:         275718        

Offense:       Cocaine-Purchase Crack

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:      Confinement 1 year and 6 months (suspended); Probation 1 year and 6 months; Court Costs $353

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld

Date:            10/12/1996

Location:     Jacksonville 

Case #:         JSO275718      

Offense:       Robbery

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:      Confinement 9 months; Credited time 90 days; Court Costs $253

Disposition:  Guilty/Convicted

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to deny the application based on the criminal history.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

              
2.    Lawson, Cecil E

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on October 13, 2006.  The application was not complete and a deficiency letter was sent.  The deficient items were returned on November 29, 2007.  The applicant answered “NO” to Section 7, in Criminal History Questions.-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below.”, however, the fingerprint card result returned listing criminal history. 

Date:            4/24/1988

Location:      New Smyrna Beach

Case #:         88040394        

Offense:       Sex Offense-Against a Child-Fondling

Pled:             

Sentence:      Confinement 3 months; Credited time 15 days; Probation 1 year; Court costs $225

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld

Date:            12/15/1988

Location:      New Smyrna Beach

Case #:         88120209        

Offense:       Cocaine Possession-Unlawful Possession of a Controlled Substance

Pled:             Nolo Contendre

Sentence:      Confinement 3 months; Credited time 15 days; Probation 3 year; Community Control 2 years; 

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld

Mr. Cecil Lawson stated that he has been employed with Baldwin Brothers Funeral Home for 9 years.  The reason why the application had to be completed again was because the application called for offenses within the past 10 years.  The applicant was 21 years old when this occurred.  The thing about the children is not right.  Mr. and Mrs. Lawson had just gotten an apartment and the windows were bare.  The children happened to see them through the window, but since he was arrested for the drug charge, the deal was if the applicant pled guilty to the 3 crimes, he would not have to serve 10 years for the cocaine charge and adjudication would be withheld.  Mr. Lawson pled guilty to the 3 charges to get a lighter sentence, completed 90 days for each child that looked into the window, 2 years house arrest, 3 years probation, 300 hours of community service and drug rehab.  Since then Mr. Lawson has been clean and is now a saved Christian.  
Mr. Chairman questioned whether this occurred in 1988.

Mr. Lawson responded yes.

Mr. Chairman questioned the exposure charge in 1999.

Mr. Lawson stated that he was caught urinating in a park as he did not realize anyone was around.

Mr. Jones questioned why the 1999 incident was not included in the application.

Mr. Lawson responded that he had forgotten about it as it was not in his police report.  He had already been an apprentice for 2 years when this occurred.  This was an honest mistake.  He has been living his life right trying to become a better person and has been in school in Jacksonville for 3 years with 3 children.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether the 1999 charge was a misdemeanor.

Mr. Lawson confirmed it was.

Ms. Evans questioned what Mr. Lawson has been doing for Baldwin Brothers for the past 9 years.

Mr. Lawson advises that he has been cleaning the prep room, removals, embalming bodies (when he had apprenticeship), make up casketing and run errands.
Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether Mr. Lawson is enrolled in the Mortuary School Program in Jacksonville.

Mr. Lawson responded yes.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned how far along he was.

Mr. Lawson stated that he is in Embalming I.
Mr. Helm questioned the indecent exposure charge.
Mr. Lawson advised that he did not see anyone in the park as he was mowing lawns on the weekends while still working for Baldwin Brothers.  He stopped to have a sandwich at one of the picnic tables and attempted to use the restroom, but they were looked.  So Mr. Lawson went around to the back of the building to urinate.  Evidently someone saw him across the ditch and got the tag number and the cops confronted Mr. Lawson.

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt asked for another explanation of the incident with the children.

Mr. Lawson stated that 3 girls lived behind their apartment.  When he and his wife moved into the apartment, there were no curtains.  One morning the girls saw them through the window drying off and getting dressed.  Two days later, the cops showed up.  In order to receive a lesser sentence on the drug charge, Mr. Lawson was advised to plea bargain and pled to a lesser charge, which were 3 misdemeanors.

Mr. Helm questioned whether there were any children in the apartment.

Mr. Lawson responded no and advises that he has 3 children of his own and would never touch a child.
Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Mr. Lawson is aware of the actual charge that shows up.

Mr. Lawson responded that he is now.  Back when he was 21 years old, he was just trying to avoid going to prison for 10 years and have a felony on his record.  

Ms. Thomas-DeWitt questioned whether Mr. Lawson is listed as a registered sex offender.

Mr. Lawson responded no.

Mr. Chairman questioned who Mr. Lawson was supposedly fondling.
Mr. Lawson responded that he does not know.  

Mr. Chairman questioned whether there were any children in the home.

Mr. Lawson responded no.

Mr. Chairman questioned how old Mr. Lawson’s fiancée was.

Mr. Lawson responded that she was 21 years old.

Mr. Helm questioned whether this charge was already pending when Mr. Lawson was caught with the cocaine.

Mr. Lawson responded yes.  The Judge decided to put both into one case.  At that time it appeared to be a good deal.  Mr. Lawson preferred serving 90 days to 10 years and having a felony record.

Ms. Huggins stated that he still reflects as a felony record.

Mr. Lawson stated that it is not as he has a voter’s registration card and is a notary.  Everything has been checked out and Mr. Lawson states he is not a convicted felon.

Mr. Chairman questioned whether Mr. Lawson’s employer is present.

Mr. Lawson responded no, but he submitted a letter to the Board from Mr. Baldwin.  

Mr. Lawson stated that when he received a copy of his record from the courthouse, he called an attorney to inquire why it stated that he was fondling a child.  The attorney stated that it did not matter as Mr. Lawson was not convicted of it.  Mr. Lawson disagreed.

Mr. Jones stated that he would like clarification on the felony.  Mr. Jones requested that this item be deferred to the next meeting.

Mr. Lawson agreed to waive his 90-day right.

Ms. Teegen stated that the applicant could obtain certified copies from the court where he was convicted to show exactly what he was convicted of.  The data before the Board may not be a complete record.

Mr. Jones requested that the certified copy be submitted to the Board for review.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to defer the application.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

Ms. Evans requested that Mr. Lawson provide his 90-day waiver in writing.

Mr. Lawson stated that he would.

              

3.    Sisk, Scott, P     

Ms. Evans stated that the application was received on December 8, 2006.  The application was complete and no deficiency letter was needed.  The applicant answered “Yes” to Section 7, in Criminal History Questions.-“Have you, the applicant herein, ever plead guilty, been convicted, or entered a plea in the nature of no contest, regardless of whether adjudication was entered or withheld by the court in which the case was prosecuted, in the courts of Florida or another state or the United States or a foreign country, regarding any crime indicated below.”  

Date:            11/19/1995

Location:     Melbourne 

Case #:         95053765        

Offense:       Aggravated Battery

Pled:             Guilty

Sentence:      Confinement 11 months and 29 days; Credited time 83 days; Probation 2 years; Community Control 2 years; Terminated early

Disposition:  Adjudication Withheld

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XVI.
Continuing Education Course Approval(s) 


A.
Recommended for Approval – See Addendum F



1.
Aurora Casket Company #0002213



2.
Dodge Institute for Advanced Mortuary Studies #0001407



3.
Epsilon Nu Delta Mortuary Fraternity #0002906



4.
Florida Wilbert, Inc. #0002783



5.
FuneralCE #0003221



6.
Independent Funeral Directors of Florida #0001399



7.
International Cemetery and Funeral Association #0001415



8.
International Order of the Golden Rule #0001440



9.
James H Justice #0001643



10.
Jewish Funeral Directors of America #0001404

Ms. Evans presented the courses for approval.

Mr. Helm disclosed his affiliation with Florida Wilbert, Inc.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the applications.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XVII.
Application(s) to Become a Continuing Education Provider

A. Calvin H Sweeting

Ms. Evans presented the application for approval.

MOTION:  Ms. Zippay moved to approve the application.  Col. Ballas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B. Mathews Cremation Division

Ms. Evans presented the application for approval.

MOTION:  Ms. Hubbell moved to approve the application.  Mr. Brandenburg seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XVIII.
Consumer Protection Trust Fund Claims

A. Recommended for Approval - See Addendum G

Ms. Evans presented the claims for approval.
MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the claims.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
XIX.
Trust Transfer Request(s)


A.
Fuller-Miller Funeral Services, Inc. d/b/a Fuller Funeral Home - Cremation Services (Naples)

Ms. Evans stated the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Preneed Trust Funds of Fuller-Miller Funeral Services, Inc. from the SCI Florida Preneed Funeral Trust Agreement (SunTrust Bank) to BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc. - F.S.I. 1993 Trust Agreement.
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Ms. Zippay moved to approve the application.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


B.
Funeral Services of Florida, LLC d/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Crestview Memorial Funeral Home 

Ms. Evans stated the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Ch. 639 Preneed Trust Funds of Funeral Services of Florida, LLC, D/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Crestview Memorial Funeral Home, from the Security Trust Master Fund Agreement 1985 (U.S. Bank) to BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc - The 88 Trust Agreement.

Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Col. Ballas moved to approve the application.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


C.
Funeral Services of Florida, LLC d/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Crestview Memorial Funeral Home 

Ms. Evans stated the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Preneed Trust Funds of Funeral Services of Florida, LLC, D/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Crestview Memorial Funeral Home, from the Security Trust Plans Preneed Funeral Trust Agreement Trust 2 (U.S. Bank) to BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc. - F.S.I. 1993 Trust Agreement.

Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved to approve the application.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

D.
Funeral Services of Florida, LLC d/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Live Oak Memorial Park of Crestview

Ms. Evans stated the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Care & Maintenance Trust funds of Funeral Services of Florida, LLC, D/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Live Oak Memorial Park, from the Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc. (Live Oak) and Rose Lawn Care & Maintenance Trust Agreements 1999 (U.S. Bank) to BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc. - F.S.I. 1993 Trust Agreement.
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Mr. Jones moved to approve the application.  Ms. Hubbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

E. Funeral Services of Florida, LLC d/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Live Oak Memorial Park of Crestview

Ms. Evans stated the Applicant requests approval for the transfer of the Preneed Trust Funds of Funeral Services of Florida, LLC, D/b/a Rose Lawn Cemetery of Gulf Breeze and Live Oak Memorial Park, from the Funeral Services Acquisition Group, Inc. Merchandise Trust Agreement 1999 (U.S. Bank) to BB&T (Branch Banking & Trust Co.)/Funeral Services, Inc. - F.S.I. 1993 Trust Agreement.
Staff recommends approval of the above referenced request contingent upon certification of the transfer being received by the Department within 60 days of the Board meeting date.

Compliance with other State and Federal regulations is the responsibility of the Certificate-holder.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the application.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XX.  
Request(s) for Refund


A.   McKay, Derian J  

Ms. Evans stated that Mr. McKay initially was approved to sit for the Florida Laws and Rules exam in May of 2005.  Mr. McKay was ill during this time and was not able to sit for the Law and Rules exam and subsequently submitted two applications to re-take the exam due to not being able to make scheduled appointments.  On November 25, 2006, Mr. McKay passed away and we received a letter from his widow requesting a refund on monies sent to take the Florida Law and Rules exam and receive a Funeral Director and Embalmer License.  The total refund requested is $1,095.  He submitted $455 with the initial application and $320 for each application to re-take the exam.

Mr. Helm questioned whether there are any guidelines for issuing refunds.

Ms. Huggins stated that it is sad, but the application fees are non-refundable.

Ms. Evans stated that the Statute states the fee is non-refundable.

MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to deny the request.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed with one dissenting vote.  
XXI. 
Disciplinary Report

	
	Issued Since Last Meeting  (December 7, 2006)
	Issued Since

January 1, 2006

	Notice of Non-Compliance
	0
	3

	Letters of Guidance
	9
	19

	Citations
	0
	5


XXII.  
Administrative Report                 
The Administrative Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.  

XXIII.
Funeral Administrative Report               

The Funeral Administrative Report was submitted to the Board on the Agenda.

XXIV.
Rules Committee Report 

A.
69K-9.004 “Pre-Need Funeral & Cemetery Arrangements” Brochure 

Mr. Brandenburg presented the Rule for approval.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the Rule.  Ms. Thomas-DeWitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

B.
69K-17.0034 Continuing Education Requirements for License Renewal 

Mr. Brandenburg presented the Rule for approval.

MOTION:  Ms Hubbell moved to approve the Rule.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


C. 
69K-17.0042 Approval of Continuing Education Courses

Mr. Brandenburg presented the Rule for approval.

MOTION:  Mr. Helm moved to approve the Rule.  Ms. Huggins seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


D.
69K-25.004 Application Procedure for Limited Licenses for Retired Professionals
Mr. Brandenburg presented the Rule for approval.
MOTION:  Ms. Huggins moved to approve the Rule.  Ms. Zippay seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

XXV. 
Chairman's Report (Oral)
None
XXVI.
Attorney Report (Oral)
None
***THE FOLLOWING ITEM WAS PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED***

XII.
Application(s) for Florida Laws and Rules Examination 

B. Recommended for Consideration



1.   Funeral Director and Embalmer



b.  
Webster, Norman E


Ms. Loucks questioned whether Mr. Webster’s Kentucky license is still revoked.

Mr. Webster responded yes.

Ms. Loucks questioned when Mr. Webster was licensed in Indiana.

Mr. Webster responded April 2000.

Ms. Loucks stated that according to the rule of this Board, anyone who is licensed after October 1, 1979 has to hold an Associates Degree in Mortuary Science from a school or college approved by the American Board of Funeral Service Education and meet the examination requirements.  Since Mr. Webster is applying based on his licensure in Indiana, he would need to have the Associates Degree in Mortuary Science in order to be qualified as an applicant.  If the Board were to take action today on the license, they would have to deny it.  The applicant could withdraw the application, but the fee is non-refundable.
Mr. Webster questioned whether he would be able to apply again if he completed further education and obtain an Associates Degree in a year or so.  Mr. Webster also questioned whether he would be denied based on his felony conviction.

Ms. Loucks stated that the Board could not speculate how they would vote on that.  If the Associates Degree requirement was met, then that hurdle to licensure would be overcome.  It would still have to come back before the Board.  The fact that Mr. Webster has a felony conviction is not an outright bar, but it would be the determination of the Board at that time.

Mr. Webster questioned the revocation in Kentucky.

Ms. Loucks stated that is also action taken against Mr. Webster’s license, which could also be grounds for denial here.  Ms. Loucks questioned whether the Board would give Mr. Webster 7 days to decide whether he would like to withdraw his application.

Mr. Webster stated that he would like to withdraw his application.

Ms. Evans requested the withdrawal in writing.

Mr. Webster stated that the withdrawal would be mailed to Ms. Evans.

XXVII.
Executive Director’s Report (Oral)

A.
Report from Richard Baldwin – Examiner for Menorah Gardens October ‘06 - November ’06  

The Board members received copies of reports from Richard Baldwin for the months of October ’06 – November ‘06.  Mr. Baldwin continues to assist consumers.


B.
Staffing Report
Ms. Evans stated that there is still one vacancy in Tallahassee for a staff member to process funeral applicants.  A potential candidate has been interviewed to fill the position.  Tampa staff was present at the meeting.

C.
Update on Computer Project
Ms. Evans stated that the Department is making progress.  There was a potential deployment date of February 23rd, but one of the 2 vendors indicated that they would not be ready on that date but would be ready at the end of April.  Ms. Evans has a meeting with the 2nd vendor on the 12th to get their projection of when they would be ready.  Apparently, they may have made some assumptions that they should not have since they now know a little bit more about our business plan.  It is encouraging that they want to get it right rather than forcing it and then having problems later on.  It will not cost the Department any more money, but it will be delayed.  

Associated with the problems with the computer system, Ms. Evans was given an item that appears the computer system let somebody down.  Ms. Evans requested that the Board allow the Agenda to be amended to put this applicant on for a preneed sales agent appointment.
The applicant’s name is Sharon A Blackburn.  She had been licensed and had a temporary appointment.  Ms. Blackburn could not purse this as her mother was sick.  Because they are unable to terminate her original appointment, which expired in August ’06, they are unable to appoint her now as a preneed sales agent to work for their company.  

Ms. Lisa Lyons Coney stated that Ms. Blackburn applied for appointment as a preneed sales agent in April ’06.  Ms. Blackburn was issued a temporary licensure and has no criminal history.  During her earlier appointment, her mother became very ill.  Ms. Blackburn left to care for her dying mother.  Her mother has since passed and Ms. Blackburn would like to return to the industry to serve families.  There is a technical glitch in eAppoint that will not allow Ms. Blackburn to be processed as the system shows the temporary appointment from last year as expired.  The Simplicity Plan has been working diligently with LaShonda Morris to try and correct this but it appears this is not something she can overcome.  Ms.  Blackburn submitted a new application on January 4, 2007.  Had that application been processed, she would have been on this agenda.  Fingerprints are in the mail, but they have not been processed by the Division yet.  The Simplicity Plan does background checks on all hires for misdemeanors and felonies for a 20 year period.  The check on Ms. Blackburn was returned perfectly clean.

MOTION:  Mr. Brandenburg moved for approval pending the outcome of the criminal history.  Mr. Jones seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

D.
Update on Consumer Brochure
Ms. Evans stated that 1000s more brochures have been printed and they are available.
Ms. Evans stated that there was a report submitted on the cremated remains for Brinson’s Funeral Home of Orlando, after the Agenda was published.  Baldwin-Fairchild Funeral Home & Cemeteries agreed to take responsibility for trying to return the cremated remains.  Mr. Frank Todd Winninger reports that they were asked in the summer of 2006 to work with the Department in returning the cremated remains to the next of kin.  Mr. Winninger is pleased to report 2/3 of the cremated remains have been returned to the appropriate family member.  Several cases either had no file or contact information whatsoever.  Several families, despite certified mail postcard, never contacted the Funeral Home.  In 2 cases, families insisted that arrangements were made and fees were paid to Brinson’s for the interment of their loved ones cremated remains.  The files do not reflect this, but again many of the files received were incomplete.  The letter requests consideration of the 2 cases in need of interment space.  Families maintain it was arranged and paid through Brinson’s.  The names are Ebenezer Gum, next of kin is Octavia Nurse and Dorothy Young, next of kin is Willie Young.  The cost of interring the 2 decedents is $4,392.40.  

Ms. Evans stated that the Consumer Protection Trust Fund does not cover interments, but merchandise and services.
Mr. Chairman questioned whether the Department contacted the cemetery.

Ms. Evans stated that the Department does not know which cemetery as there is no record of it and it was not included in Mr. Winninger’s letter.

Mr. Chairman questioned what would happen to the remainder of the remains.

Ms. Huggins stated that the funeral home was hoping to disposition according to the Statute of unclaimed cremated remains after 120 days.
Ms. Teegen stated that the Order entered by the Department provided for exactly that.

Ms. Evans added that there will be a new procedure for fingerprinting.  It has not yet been implemented, but it will be easier for the applicants.  The Department recently engaged a contract for LiveScan.  The procedure will be posted on the website and the written procedures will be sent out to all applicants with applications.  There will be sites in 32 of the 67 counties.  Hopefully, this will be a little more convenient.  Those that absolutely cannot get to a LiveScan will still be able to use the cards.  

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether the computer system would be able to track CEUs for licensees and whether this information would be online.

Ms. Evans stated that this information would be available online.  The licensee would be able to scan and confirm the hours that they have taken.  This will be matched up with the license system.  This part was not delayed.

Mr. Brandenburg questioned whether this system would be up by August.

Ms. Evans responded that it would.  The licensing system has to be up and running by June 30th.  It is anticipated that the new projected deployment date would be the end of April or early May.  The preneed licensing renewal will be done under the old system.  

Mr. A C Morrison stated that there are several situations in Hillsboro/Pinellas that the Board has been made aware of regarding unlicensed personnel and funeral home owners not licensed as funeral directors.  This has also been reported to the Department.  Mr. Morrison questioned what if anything would be done about this as it has been an ongoing situation.  The funeral home is still in business and the owner feels they are able to do whatever.
Mr. Chairman questioned how long has this been going on.

Mr. Morrison responded that this has been going on for years.

Ms. Evans stated that investigations are confidential and that she would be breaking confidentiality if any details were given as to what the Department has been doing.  Ms. Evans added that the complaints have been heard and are not going unnoticed.  

Mr. Morrison questioned whether the investigation of one item takes years.

Ms. Evans responded that it does not.  Until the Department gets to the point where it can make an investigation public, it has to go before the Probable Cause Panel and an Administrative Complaint will either be issued or 10 days after Panel hears the case, then the case will be made public.

Ms. Hubbell stated that she has been concerned with the Hope Memorial application that was to be heard previously on the teleconference.  As a Board member, she would never have known that there was any affiliation with any health care provider.  Ms. Hubbell questioned whether it would be helpful for the Board if there was a question on the application questioning whether the applicant has any affiliation or association with health care providers.

Mr. John Rudolph stated that first off, the Statute would need to be changed.  This is in the process of being done.  There is nothing in the Statute that specifically provided a prohibition to those entities to own a funeral establishment, cemetery or anything else.  
XXVIII. Adjournment

At 12:00 p.m., the meeting was adjourned.
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